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I N D E X

(No witnesses were called.)

 
E X H I B I T S

(No exhibits were submitted.)  
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P R O C E E D I N G S

EVIN RAE DAVENPORT

After being duly sworn, testified as follows: 

THE COURT:  Mr. Gibbons, have you explained to Ms. 

Davenport the nature of her charges, the possible penalties 

and her Constitutional rights regarding these cases?

MR. GIBBONS:  I have, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Do you believe that she has understood 

that?

MR. GIBBONS:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Are you in agreement with her decision to 

plead guilty?

MR. GIBBONS:  I am. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Weeks. 

MR. WEEKS:  Your Honor, Ms. Davenport is before you on 

three indictments, two stemming from one incident and one, a 

separate incident.  She's charged with trafficking in 

methamphetamine from a purchase of methamphetamine from her 

on July the 23rd of 2020.  She is before you, also, on two 

indictments stemming from an arrest on September the 23rd of 

2020.  Both of these separate incidents occurred in Aiken 

County.  

The first incident occurred with narcotics officers 

with Aiken County Sheriff's Department making a purchase of 

methamphetamine from Ms. Davenport in the parking lot of the 
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Clearwater shopping center.  The drugs were analyzed and 

came back over the statutory ten gram limit for trafficking 

in methamphetamine.  

The second event occurred on the date I indicated and 

was the result of them taking warrants taken out for the 

July 23rd, 2020 incident to arrest her, maybe on other 

warrants, too, that were out there pending.  They went to 

her house, which is located in Aiken, where she was living 

in Aiken County.  I think it was on Beech Island Avenue in 

Aiken County.  

She was present there.  When she opened the door, the 

officers indicated -- the officers are here in the courtroom 

today because this is the case that we were going to trial 

on today.  They indicated that she broke out in tears and 

when questioned about the drugs, she said, They're in my 

purse in the bedroom.  

There was a sufficient quantity of methamphetamine to 

get by the statutory inference level of ten grams.  The 

heroin that was confiscated from the same purse came back 

just shy of trafficking in heroin inference level, so we 

have accepted a plea of possession with intent to distribute 

heroin third offense.  

Ms. Davenport has, at least, two prior convictions for 

drug offenses.  The last one was a trafficking in drugs and 

she received a sentence of five years.  
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All of the indictments before you today, we have 

included a negotiation for a negotiated sentence of 25-year 

minimum under the statute.  She has a number of other 

pending charges, Your Honor, as a result of several 

different arrests.  With this plea, we're dismissing those 

pending indictments.  

THE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Weeks.

Ms. Davenport, have you had any illegal drugs or 

alcohol within the last 72 hours?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Are you on any type of medication that 

would prevent you from understanding what we're doing here 

today?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Have you had enough time to speak with your 

attorney?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Are you totally and completely satisfied 

with his representation of you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Ms. Davenport, has anyone forced you or 

promised you anything in order to take this plea today?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Are you pleading guilty because you are 

guilty?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Ms. Davenport, have you been truthful in 

your answers to me?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Did you hear everything that the solicitor 

told me about your case?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Are you in agreement with those facts?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  How do you wish to plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  All right.  I'll accept your plea and I'll 

find it has been made freely and voluntarily.  You have the 

assistance and counsel of an attorney, Mr. Gibbons, with 

whom you told me you were satisfied with.  

Mr. Gibbons. 

MR. GIBBONS:  Thank you, Your Honor.  May it please the 

Court.  

I'd like to first start out in saying that Evin has 

been locked up a couple times on these charges, but 

according to the jail, she has 269 days credit on these 

charges.  

THE COURT:  All right.  

MR. GIBBONS:  She's 31.  She's from the Aiken area.  

She went to school in North Augusta.  She didn't finish, but 
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she -- she does not have her GED, but she wants to work on 

that.  She has two small children, two girls, ten and five.  

She's mostly concerned about them.  She understands she has 

not seen them for a while and she needs to be the best 

example she can.  She's made some mistakes in the past, but 

she wants to be a good mother to them in whatever way, shape 

or form she can.  

She has worked in the past doing insurance sales.  She 

had a home cleaning business.  She's done some waitresses, 

home health care, things like that.  I know it was hard for 

her to make ends meet after her last stint she did in prison 

and put her financially kind of in the hole, but she knows 

she's made some really bad choices here.  We would ask the 

Court to consider that and to follow along with the 

negotiation.  

Do you have anything to say, Evin, at this point?

THE DEFENDANT:  Just that I accept full responsibility 

for my actions.  I'm not one to say I'm not guilty if I 

actually did something.  Like he said, I'm just mainly 

worried about my kids.  Thank you, because you just granted 

my kids' father an appeal.  You gave him 20 years and then 

he asked for an appeal and you actually granted it to him, 

so he'll be home, so I thank you.  He got a 20-year sentence 

for an accidental ATV death.  He accidentally killed his 

friend.  He's never been in trouble before.  So, again, 
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thank you.  

MR. GIBBONS:  Your Honor, her dad --

THE DEFENDANT:  I have that whole back row.  

MR. GIBBONS:  Yeah, her dad, her friends -- 

Raise your hand if you're here with Evin. 

They're here supporting her today.  Your Honor, we've 

talked about this.  It's been a lot of bad news what I've 

brought to her and it hasn't always been easy for her to 

deal with that, I don't blame her.  But she knows completely 

what's going on.  We've talked about the limited options 

that she has and she feels like this is the best thing she 

can do at this point to avoid LWOP and consecutive sentences 

and things like that.  It's still a tough pill to swallow.  

You know, she's got to dig herself out of this situation.  

We would ask the Court to go along with this.   

THE COURT:  Mr. Weeks, just so I'm clear on the 

negotiated sentence, it is 25 to 30?

MR. WEEKS:  25 to 30 is the sentence range --

MR. GIBBONS:  The negotiation is 25.  It carries 25 to 

30.  

MR. WEEKS:  25, concurrent on them.

THE COURT:  Ms. Davenport, you understand that when you 

plead guilty, you give up your right to a jury trial?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  And I understand that you wish to go 
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forward with the plea today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  Ms. Davenport, if for any reason, you wish 

to appeal this plea, you must do so by contacting Mr. 

Gibbons within the next ten days.  Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:  All right.  I am going to go along with the 

negotiated sentence.  I am sentencing you to a 25-year 

sentence.  All charges will run concurrent with each other.  

You will receive credit for the time you have served in the 

amount of 269 days.  

THE DEFENDANT:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  Good luck to you, Ms. Davenport.

THE DEFENDANT:  Thank you.

MR. GIBBONS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 
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CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER

I, PENNY M. JOHNSON, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing transcript is a true and correct record of the 

recorded proceedings; that said proceedings were transcribed 

to the best of my ability from the audio recording and 

supporting information; and that I am neither counsel for, 

related to, nor employed by any of the parties to this case, 

and I have no interest, financial or otherwise, in its 

outcome.

March 9, 2023

_________________________________
Penny M. Johnson  
Court Reporter III  
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V.

APPLICATION FOR

State of Sooth Carolina POST-CONVICTION RELIEF

INSTRUCTIONS - READ CAREFULLY

1.

2.

3.

4

1

JjtMl:Efli1

Since every application must be sworn under oath, any false statement of a material fact therein

may serve as the basis of prosecution and conviction for perjury. Applicants should, therefore, exercise
care to assure that ail answers are true and correct.

The indictment number or numbers (if known) upon which and the offenses for which

sentence was imposed:

<a)

(b)

)
)
)

^ca\-frrs-m- ccn^n

V

Wieoei )
)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Name and location of Court which imposed sentence (71XnA<A
\QC4/aWvL nxJf.nLL^ AtY>n SC 3^30) J

Name(s) ofco>defendant(s) (if any) KUSMC.

In order for this application to receive consideration by the Court, it shall be in writing (legibly
handwritten or typewritten), signed by the applicant and verified (notarized), and it shall set forth in
concise form the answers to each applicable question. If necessary, applicant may furnish bis answer to a
particular question on the reverse side of the page or on an additional page. Applicant shall make clear w
which question any such continued answer refers.

STATE OESOUTH CAROLINA

County of

Fait name and prison number 1 ifany) ofApj

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

FILED 20.

DeputyClerk ‘

]f the application is taken in forma nauperis. it shall include an affidavit (attached at the back of
the form) setting forth information winch establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and
costs of the proceedings. When the application is completed, the original shall be mailed to the Clerk of
Court for the County in which the applicant was convicted.

Place ofdetention
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5.

6.

7.

8.

the result in each such Court to which you appealed:

the date of each such result:

9.

(b)

if known. citations of any wrinen opinion or orders entered pursuant to such

results: . .

(a)

(b)

(c)

j.

ii.

iii.

(a)

i.

ii.

iii.

(b)
i.

ii.

iii.

(0

i.

ii.

iii.

(d)

io-

I S‘

\0‘

If you answered -no'' :o(7), state your reasons for not so appealing:

cSerAcnCfi oV ^c<r6 Ut-

tc) ?Lcidi \ ~ 0~tS~ o5 ~ C£/lkju?
The date upon which sentence was imposed and the terms of ihe sentence:

fa) " ‘

(b)

(c)

Check whether a findingdfguilty was made:

after a plea of guilty

after a plea of not guilty

after a plea of nolo contendere

Did you sppcs) boro the judgment of conviction or the imposition ofsentence?

V)O

If you answered *yes“ to (7), list:

the name of each Court to which you appealed:
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10.

11.

12.

(c)

(d)

13.

iv.

J

(8)

(b)

(«)

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

<b)

i.

• ii.

iii.

fester .

4eXAK)c^ Ti rnTr ,

VVjlX-

O\ 0

fc)

State concisely the pounds on which you base your allegation that you are being held in

custody unlawfully: j

(a) ~^c\xsSmx\(A W ^uLL3^ ^\<j>(n^ucs
(b) KiOY wIa ai^ cjaT
(c) KfcCXGn kl\S Cl k<A CWrCCfe
State concisely aft mtfie saq$ order the facts which support each of the pounds set out

in (10):

w \Mt &n\u cm W
(b) *~~£ kuus X-McA Vou
(e) l^XA AvcS
Prior to this application have you fried with respect id this conviction:

any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law? t\jO>

any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post-convictions

relief? ______

any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other than petitions,

if any, already specified in (8)?

any other petitions, motions or applications in this or any other Court?

If you answered "yes" to any pan of (12), list with respect io each petition, motion or

application:

the specific nature thereof:

"C- loc CAe Ct^X'\w,i o m6Hcrt

\ {wy \C^rA\\cCr 4v> is
the aSFfewi^Sljf the Court in which each was filed:

Ccxx-cU^ COaA •
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> .

the disposition thereof:

ii.
t

the date ofeach such disposition:(d)

14.

15.

the proceedings in which each ground was raised:

i.

ii.

iii.

Revised 3,2003

4

(c)

i.

iv.

(e)

(a)

i.

ii.

iii.

(b)

iii.

iv.

if known, citations of any written opinions or orders entered pursuant to each such

disposition:

i.

ii.

iii.

If you answered “yes" to (14) identify:

which grounds have been presented:

j.

ii. '

iii.

IV. ' ; .

Has any ground sei forth in ( ) 0) been previously presented to this or any other Court,

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed?

Md
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16.

17.

I

<e)

IS.

ii.

iii.

(b)

i.

ii.

iii.

Revised 3/2003

5

<Wky. C\i^hirn -ftyc.

(»)

i.

(b)

(c)

(d)

i^&AAicGn<aAV &vtotodav
Oetovim oPFAr 12

If you answered "yes* to one or more pans of ( i 7), list:

the name and address of each attorney who represented you:

foitin Cckxo-

If any ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented <o any Court, State or

Federal, set forth the pound and state concisely the reasons why such ground has not

previously been presented:

W J
(b) 1

(c)

Were you represented by an anorney at any time during the course of:

(a) your arraignment and plea?

your trial, if any?

your sentencing?

your appeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of

sentence?

preparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or

applications with respect to this conviction, which you filed?

the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

u HYiVtnn -fr)f Of CCu ftSe )
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19.

fl VpsSfK VnVnro

20.

VERIFICATION

Kx^art^

<L.S.)

My Commission Expires:

Revised 3/2003

6

i

)
)

State clearly the rei ief you seek in filing this application:

(_q5^s iWriU*

Are you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged?

xoo

SWORKltxand subscribed before me this

Lz Notary Public j \

1, , being duly sworn
upon my oath, depose and say thafl have subscribed to the foregoing application; that 1 know tbe
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or

correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and

allegations therein sei forth are true. .—. /I

^l<CxJL \/(XX,

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

County of.
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1

] am the applicant in this action and 1 believe 1 am entitled to redress.(1)

i (2)

S'

My Commission Expires:

Revised 3/2003

7

Because of my poverty 1 am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give

. Q)

APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT

IN SUPPORT THEREOF

, hereby apply for leave to
proceed in this action wiihouv^repayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support ofmy
application 1 declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

2ueLm5 YOutT —
/Xfipwypublic 1 /]
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )      
     )  COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

COUNTY OF AIKEN    ) 2023-CP-02-00025 
)
)
)
)
)

EVIN R. DAVENPORT, )
APPLICANT, )

)
vs. )   TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD   

)    
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )

RESPONDENT. )
______________________________)

June 9, 2025
Aiken, South Carolina

B E F O R E:

THE HONORABLE DEBRA R. MCCASLIN, JUDGE.  

A P P E A R A N C E S:

ASHLEY A. MCMAHAN, ESQ.
Attorney for the Applicant

CRUISE MITCHELL, ESQ.
Attorney for the Respondent 

PENNY M. JOHNSON
Court Reporter III 
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I N D E X

(AW) - Denotes Applicant's Witness
(RW) - Denotes Respondent's Witness

  Page No.

(AW) EVIN DAVENPORT:  
Direct Examination by Ms. McMahan..........
Cross-Examination by Mr. Mitchell..........

(RW) DE GRANT GIBBONS:
Direct Examination by Mr. Mitchell.........
Cross-Examination by Ms. McMahan...........
Examination by the Court...................
Recross-Examination by Ms. McMahan.........  

E X H I B I T S

(There were no exhibits submitted.)
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P R O C E E D I N G S

THE COURT:  I'm going to ask y'all to call the case, 

please. 

MR. MITCHELL:  May it please the Court, Your Honor?

THE COURT:  Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL:  This is the PCR matter of Evin Davenport 

v. State, case number 2023-CP-02-00025.  During the June 

2021 term, the Aiken County Grand Jury indicted Applicant 

for trafficking heroin four to 14 grams, trafficking 

methamphetamine 10 to 28 grams, and trafficking 

methamphetamine -- another charge of trafficking 

methamphetamine 10 to 28 grams.  Applicant was represented 

by Second Circuit Public Defender De Grant Gibbons.  The 

case was prosecuted by Solicitor William Weeks.  

On June 13th, 2022, Applicant pled guilty before the 

Honorable Courtney Clyburn-Pope.  Pursuant to negotiation 

between the State and Applicant, Judge Clyburn-Pope 

sentenced Applicant to 25 years for each trafficking 

methamphetamine charge and 25 years to the lesser included 

offense of possession with intent to distribute heroin third 

or subsequent offense.  Both sentences to be served 

concurrently. 

Your Honor, a bunch of unrelated charges were dismissed 

as part of this plea as well.  Applicant did not file a 

direct appeal.  
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4

With that, I'll turn it over to Ms. McMahan.  

MS. MCMAHAN:  Judge, at this time, we'd call Ms. 

Davenport. 

THE COURT:  Ms. Davenport, come forward and get sworn 

in, please.  

EVIN DAVENPORT,

after being duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Ms. Davenport, please spell your name for the court 

reporter, your last name.

A D-A-V-E-N-P-O-R-T.

Q And your first name is Evin, E-V-I-N, correct?

A E-V-I-N.

Q Not Erin?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And did you file this PCR application?

A I did.

Q And we've had discussions about what happens if you're 

successful in your PCR application and knowing that, you 

still wish to go forward?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q So let's talk about the allegations in your 

application.  

MS. MCMAHAN:  And I think most of these allegations 
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sort of, also, are in the amended application, also, Your 

Honor.   

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Let's start with the first issue that you have that you 

wanted to bring up to the Court about your representation by 

Mr. Gibbons.  

A Specifically, what was --

Q Like, which one do you want to start with first?  Do 

you want to start with this is my second strike not my 

third?  Because that, also, goes into --

A Yeah, we can go there.

Q What would you like the Court to know about that?

A Upon meeting him, he immediately kept telling me this 

was my third strike, this was my third strike.  And then 

upon signing my plea deal, he was like, This is actually 

your second.  And I stopped, I paused before I signed it.  I 

was like, Well, that changes things, doesn't it?  And he was 

like, No, it doesn't change anything.  And I said, Well, 

these are parole eligible, correct?  And he was like, Yeah.  

So I signed and went ahead with it.  

But every time he had seen me, it was third strike, 

third strike, third strike and then as I'm getting ready to 

sign the plea deal, it's all of a sudden being told this is 

my second.  So I thought that would change the range on the 

sentencing.  But he said it didn't affect anything.  And 
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when I asked if they were parole eligible and he said yes, I 

just went ahead and signed it.

Q So when you signed it, though, it says trafficking meth 

28 or greater, 10 to 28 -- it says third or subsequent under 

sentencing sheet.  And then the other one, the one you were 

talking about the PWID, that says third or subsequent on 

your sentencing sheet, too.  So is it your understanding 

that when you went forward that day, it was negotiated 25 to 

a second offense?

A No, I was understanding that the 25 was parole 

eligible.  And then upon getting to SCDC working at one of 

the jobs that I worked, the lady looked it up on her 

computer and it had a star by my charge and says 

non-parolable.  So that's what originally made me file the 

PCR, being told that it was non-parolable.  

Q But when you signed your sentencing sheets, you saw 

that they were thirds or did you --

A To be honest with you, I was so set on taking it to 

trial, being told seconds before I was going to take it to 

trial that it was possible LWOP shook me to where all of the 

checked boxes on there, I couldn't tell you what I said.  I 

just know that my biggest thing was okay, I'm going to sign 

this because y'all are going to LWOP me, which I was never 

informed of being a possibility, and is this just -- is it 

parole eligible?  Because if it was parole eligible, then I 
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would just parole out when the time came.  

Q Okay.  So your understanding of what parole eligible is 

what, like, you have to serve a less percentage of time?

A No, he said 85 percent.  But again, when I got to SCDC, 

upon working my first job and the lady looking it up on the 

computer and it having a star by it and saying non-parolable 

eligible shook me.  

It, also, came up on the computer as trafficking heroin 

third and upon looking back through my paperwork, I didn't 

-- I seen the NVP on the sentencing sheet, but the 

indictment was for four grams to 14 and I know mine was for 

a possession, which upon talking to you and we've gone over 

it, it does say possession, but I was informed that was the 

one that was non-parole eligible.

Q So at SCDC, you have the possession with intent to 

distribute third offense, right?  Is that the one they're 

telling you is --

A Yeah.

Q And then you have the two trafficking meths 10 to 28 

that were third?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And then your understanding is that the PWID heroin is 

not parole eligible?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And your understanding was when you were talking to Mr. 
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Gibbons in court, he said they were all parole eligible?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Did he indicate, like, any amount of time specifically 

you were going to have to serve?

A He said 85 percent.

Q But he didn't give you, like, a specific seven and a 

half years, nothing like that?

A No.

Q Okay.  And then when did you find out you were LWOP 

eligible?

A Literally, like -- I came to hire Lir Derieg and he 

told me that if he could get a continuance, which would be 

the only continuance that I've ever requested upon getting 

these charges, that he would take my case, but if he could 

not get a continuance, he would not take my case.  He went 

and talked to Judge Pope and could not get a continuance, so 

he would not take my money or my case because they wanted 

him ready for trial that day.  

And when he come back there, he was like your solicitor 

informed me that if you don't take the deal that's being 

offered, they're going to LWOP you.  And I said, What is 

that?  And he said, Life without parole.  And I said, For 49 

grams?  He was like, Yeah, he's going to second 

consecutively against you.  And I freaked.  

Q So Mr. Gibbons didn't tell you this, it was Mr. Derieg?
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A Yes.

Q And that was the day you were trying to get a 

continuance?

A Yeah, that was the day I was going to take it to trial.

Q And that's the same day you pled?

A Yes, ma'am.  That's why I pled.  I didn't even know 

that it was on the table as a possibility.

Q So the day that you pled guilty was the day you were, 

also, supposed to start a trial?

A Yes.

Q Okay.  Did you get to the point where you were pulling 

a jury or anything or did you just --

A No, ma'am, it was just the first day of it.  

Q Okay.  So were you out on bond this entire time or were 

you in jail or what was going on?

A So the charges originally stemmed from July 23rd, 2020.  

I did not get arrested then.  When they come to serve the 

warrant, that was September 23rd, 2020, I was arrested then.  

When I was arrested then, there was more charges from that 

day.  I sat in the county from September 23rd, 2020 until 

January 9th of 2021 and then I bonded out.  I did not come 

back to Aiken County until January 2nd of 2022.  

May 24th, after seeing Mr. Gibbons maybe three times, I 

was informed on May 24th that I was trial docket number one 

for the week of July 13th.  I asked how to go about firing 
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him.  He said I was -- I had to put in a release of motion.  

So I immediately went back to my cell, wrote Judge Pope a 

letter for relief of counsel -- not release of motion -- 

Q Yeah.

A On June 6th, I was pulled to Aiken County Courthouse, 

went in front of Judge Sprouse, told Judge Sprouse my 

concerns.  He told me that I could not fire him and that 

whoever I hired was to be ready for trial the following 

Monday.  

Q And then that's when you tried to hire Lir Derieg?

A Yeah, that's when my father had, actually, come up with 

the money to put down as a down payment and was going to 

hire him.  But he said he would not take my money if he 

could not get a continuance.

Q So where were you the time when you weren't in Aiken 

County?

A I was free until December 18th of 2021.  I got arrested 

in Richmond County --

Q So you were sitting in Augusta?

A I was free until December and then, yeah, upon that, I 

got arrested.  Aiken County had teamed up with Richmond 

County and come and gotten me.  There were items in a 

vehicle that I was riding passenger in --

Q Well, you don't want to get into too much of the facts 

of that, but you were sitting in the -- you were in the 
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Richmond County jail for a little while?

A I got to -- December 18th is when I was incarcerated in 

Richmond County and I bonded out and by January 2nd, I was 

back in Aiken County custody.

Q And that was in '22?

A '21.

Q So you came back to Aiken in May of '21 or '22, I'm 

sorry?

A January.

Q Of '21?

A No, I'm sorry, January of '22.

Q Okay.  But in May of '22, that's when you were told you 

were on the trial list?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

A May 24th, 2022.

Q So you were here in Aiken County at the detention 

center from September 20th to July of 2021?

A No.  I was in Aiken County Detention Center from 

September 20th to January 9th.

Q Okay.

A Then I was released and did not come back to Aiken 

County until January of '22.

Q Okay.  Sorry, I just wanted to make sure I cleared that 

up.  And the times that you were in the Aiken County 

47



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Evin Davenport - Direct by Ms. McMahan
12

Detention Center, did Mr. Gibbons come talk to you?

A Yes.

Q How many times do you think he talked to you?

A Before I was notified of being trial docket number one, 

maybe three.

Q Did you ask him to try to get you another bond hearing 

or anything like that?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

A Numerous times.  Because I felt that the charges were 

over a year and a half old.  I hadn't missed any court 

dates.  I hadn't been called to any court dates.  I had been 

in and out of the public defender's office for other 

appointments, so I knew that I hadn't been running from 

nothing, they just hadn't called me to court.  So I asked 

him to take me over for a bond hearing and he wouldn't --

Q Did you just eventually post bond on what was given to 

you from the beginning or what happened?

A No.  When I got sentenced in June, I went from sentence 

to prison.

Q Okay.  So you said you talked to him maybe three times 

prior to the May time you met with him?

A Yeah, and then I probably seen him or spoke with him, 

whether in person or a video visit, maybe three, four times 

after that.
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Q So in total, maybe six to eight times?

A Yes.

Q Do you remember what you guys talked about?

A The 25 years.  First, it was 30, then it was 25 years.  

I asked why I was trial docket number one on a recorded 

Aiken County phone call at some point between May 24th and 

before I got my plea deal and he said my solicitor had made 

a mistake and was under a lot of scrutiny in the media and, 

unfortunately, he was trying to make up for it, to sum it 

up.  Those aren't his exact words, but right there in the 

ballpark.

Q So he was calling a bunch of cases to trial, is that 

what he was --

A Yes.  I guess he had either let somebody out or 

something and was under scrutiny in the media for it and I 

ended up being on the chopping block.

Q Now, you said the first offer was 30?

A Uh-huh.  The first time he seen me, he said, You're 

looking at 30 years.  And I said, Well, I plan to hire an 

attorney, so let's just try to push this as far as we can so 

I can get my family to be able to hire an attorney.  

And then by May 24th, I was -- and I had asked for my 

discovery numerous times.  He had told me he doesn't just 

print it out and leave it at the county.  He mails it in.  I 

think it actually took me coming out of character for me to 

49



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Evin Davenport - Direct by Ms. McMahan
14

actually get a copy of my motion, discovery motion.  

Q So when did you finally get all that?

A Right before -- I can't remember if it was June 6th or 

right before June 6th.

Q It was just before the trial?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q When you guys were discussing possibly going to trial, 

was he discussing any possible defenses or anything you had?

A No.

Q Do you remember besides the 25 anything else he may 

have said to you about your case?

A No.

Q And then when did the 25 come about?  How far -- was 

that just before court on the 6th?

A I want to say it was maybe the video visit call that he 

had scheduled.  He said something about taking 25 and I was 

like, Well, I hope the rest of the charges are going to go 

away if I'm going to take the plea deal for 25 years.  And 

then when I got to court on the day of the 13th, he was 

like, the rest of the charges are being thrown out and you 

will plead to the three.

Q So the deal was plead to the three for 25 years 

negotiated?  So it was like take it or leave it, 25 years?  

Like, there was no range, nothing like that?

A Right.
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Q Okay.  Did we cover everything that you wanted to bring 

up?

A Yes, ma'am.  My recorded call, the denial of 

continuance and denial of counsel.

MS. MCMAHAN:  Okay.  Answer any questions the Attorney 

General may have for you.  

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. MITCHELL:

Q You realize the only relief that Judge McCaslin can 

grant you today is a new trial on the charges you pled to?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you understand that all the other charges that were 

dismissed by the plea, also, come back?

A Yes, sir.

Q And the State will, also, be able to serve you with a 

life without parole notice if they wish?

A Yes, sir.

Q You still want to go forward today?

A Yes, sir.

Q You testified that Mr. Gibbons did inform you that you 

would have to serve 85 percent of the sentence?

A Yes, sir.

Q And what's this about you pled guilty once you found 

out you were LWOP eligible?

A I was going to take it to trial the day of June 13th.  
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I was getting ready to go forward with the process of 

whatever that may be and Lir Derieg, who I was going to 

hire, is the only person who ever told me that that was a 

possibility.  So upon him telling me, it naturally freaked 

me out and I was okay, well, I'm taking the 25 years and 

I'll just fight it from the inside.

Q So the main reason for taking the 25 years was to avoid 

the life without parole?

A Yes, sir. 

Q Do you remember at the plea hearing telling Judge 

Clyburn-Pope that you were completely satisfied with your 

attorney?

A Yes.

MR. MITCHELL:  I believe that's all the questions I 

have for you, Ms. Davenport. 

MS. MCMAHAN:  I have no further questions.  

THE COURT:  You can step down. 

MS. MCMAHAN:  The Applicant rests. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.  

You can call any witnesses you may have. 

MR. MITCHELL:  Your Honor, at this time, the State 

would call Grant Gibbons on the stand.

DE GRANT GIBBONS,

after being duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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BY MR. MITCHELL:

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Gibbons.

A Good afternoon.

Q Where are you currently employed?

A The Circuit Public Defender for the Second Circuit.

Q And were you the Circuit Public Defender during your 

representation of Ms. Davenport?

A I was.

Q Will you explain the charges that Ms. Davenport was 

facing to the best of your recollection?

A Well, I know she had a prior drug case, so they were 

all going to be more than first offenses.  And she got a 

trafficking case and then bonded -- along with some other 

charges, she bonded out.  And within a short period of time, 

she got another trafficking case and she was looking at a 

lot of charges.

Q So she pled guilty to charges that came in different 

instances, correct?

A Correct.

Q So the State, if they wished, could have gone to trial 

on them separately?

A Yeah.  That was my conversation with her, that they 

were upset with her.  The Solicitor took the case and he was 

going to make a statement with this case if she didn't take 

the deal.
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Q And was the State going to pursue life without parole 

based on her prior charges had you gone to trial?

A That's what they indicated to me.

Q And did you inform Ms. Davenport of that as well?

A I did.  She had attempted to hire a couple of different 

attorneys and my policy is I always work with them and kind 

of tell them what they're getting into so they don't get 

blind-sided by anything.  So I explained the situation to 

Mr. Screen, he was involved at one point.  I shared the 

discovery with him and he talked about her case.  Mr. Derieg 

got involved late in the game, like, days before the trial 

was supposed to go on.  He and I worked together.  I was the 

one that explained to him the LWOP situation.  At that 

point, she was not happy with me, so he relayed that 

information to her, but I was the one who actually talked to 

him about what she was looking at.

Q Do you recall the plea negotiations in this case?

A Yeah, she would get 25 years and everything else would 

be dismissed.

Q So the main motivation was to avoid that life without 

parole?

A Well, not just life without parole, consecutive 

sentences, you know, numerous sentences with the charges she 

got dismissed.  It was a bad situation.

Q Did you explain the negotiated sentence to Ms. 
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Davenport prior to the plea?

A I did.  I don't know what the confusion is, an 85 

percent sentence is a no parole sentence.  It's the same 

thing.  So we did go over that, that it was going to be 85 

percent.  You get probation when you're paroled.  It is what 

it was.

Q So all this was advised to Ms. Davenport prior to her 

taking the plea?

A Yes.

Q And did you meet with Ms. Davenport prior to the plea?

A I did.  I looked through my notes.  I went and saw her 

five times and had either one or two video conversations 

with her.  My investigator went over there and went through 

her information with her.  I saw his notes.  My notes 

indicate that in June of '22, she said that she didn't want 

to go to trial, that she wanted to work something out.  And 

that's kind of where we were at up until she wanted to hire 

Mr. Derieg.

Q Did you review discovery with her prior to court?

A I did.  I don't think we had -- they would not turn 

over the videos to me, but my investigator and I went over 

and viewed them.  We went and told her what they showed and 

what the problem was going to be.

Q Do you believe given the LWOP notice and the amount of 

charges that this plea was in her best interest?
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A Yeah, I mean, it's hard to say with that particular 

sentence.  I mean, I feel really bad for her, that's a 

terrible sentence.  But they were really mad at her at that 

time and thought that she was a big dealer with some 

organization and they were going to go after her to the full 

extent.  She's one of the smartest clients I've had.  She's 

a smart young lady.  She just got wrapped up in some stuff.

Q And the decision to plead guilty, was that, ultimately, 

hers?

A It was.  Like I said, I talked to Mr. Derieg.  When the 

Judge denied the continuance, he said he wasn't going to get 

on the case.  And I said, Well, let's talk.  She's 

communicating with you right now and we can all kind of get 

together on where we should go on this.  And that's what 

happened.  

MR. MITCHELL:  Mr. Gibbons, I think that's all I have 

for you.  

THE COURT:  Any cross?

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Is it common for Mr. Weeks to take on his own cases?

A He does carry a case load.  It is not uncommon for him 

to take cases.  Usually, it's murder cases and high profile 

cases and that's why I think he picked this one up.  It was 

a pretty strong case and people were up in arms about folks 
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bonding out and getting arrested again at that time, I guess 

they still are, and he was bound and determined to make an 

example if we didn't take the deal.

Q You referenced the videos.  These were CI buys?

A There were CI buys.  There were, also, videos of her 

being with somebody at a particular business, things like 

that.

Q And is it normal for the solicitor not to turn over the 

CI tapes until just before trial?

A Unfortunately.

Q Did you get a chance to even look at them or did they 

give you still shots or anything like that?

A I looked at them.  My investigator and I both went over 

and looked at them and then he went over to the jail.

Q Were you convinced that was Ms. Davenport in those 

videos?

A Oh, yeah, it was her.

Q If this had gone to trial, what kind of defenses would 

she have been looking at?

A The only thing we could have maybe done is that she was 

just a mule or participant, go-between, she wasn't the big 

person involved.  It would have been a tough argument to get 

completely scott free on it.

Q So she was more of like a middle man in between the two 

--
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A That's what I would have argued.  There wasn't a whole 

lot. 

Q Did you see any issue with the seizure of the drugs, 

any issues with the chain or anything like that?

A No.

Q And you heard her talking about getting her discovery.  

What normally do you do when trying to provide clients with 

copies of it?

A Well, I advise most of them with serious charges like 

this and volumes of discovery, I usually tell my clients I 

will come over here, I will send someone over here and show 

you whatever you want to see any time you want to see it.  

If you absolutely demand it, I will give it to you, but it's 

a dangerous thing to have in your cell with people facing 

charges looking for a way to get you to help themselves.  

Q You mean, like, sort of, jailhouse snitches getting --

A Well, you could be reading it and someone look over 

your shoulder and see a date and a time or color of the car 

and they'll call their lawyer and say hey, she admitted to 

me it happened on this date and was in a green car.  And 

then you have another witness against you.  But if they 

actually demand it, I give it to them.  

This was during Covid, so it was kind of crazy times 

with all the video visits and things like that.  And 

discovery comes in piecemeal, especially when there are 
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multiple charges like this.  

Q Is that still sort of the case or just that time that 

was pretty common?

A Yeah, it's still -- it's not as common as it was then, 

but it's still common.

Q And then was it given to you electronically, in paper 

or how do you typically receive it?

A Well, most of the time, I get it electronically.  Mr. 

Weeks is a little bit old school and he will send a paper 

copy over.  And I was, actually, talking to a friend of 

Evin, she gave me permission to deal with her.  There was 

talk about me e-mailing discovery and they will not let me 

e-mail discovery to the jail.  There's no way to do that.  I 

don't remember exactly what that was all about unless I was 

going to e-mail it to her friend or maybe I was going to 

e-mail to her what I had while she was out.  But when she 

was out, we really didn't have much contact.

Q When did you know that this case was going to be on the 

trial docket?

A Looks like it was about the middle of May, middle to 

late May.

Q So approximately 30 days before the court term?

A Correct.

Q Is that pretty par for the course?

A It is.  And that's the time my notes indicate we gave 
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her discovery.

Q She was back in the detention center at that point?

A Yes.  

MS. MCMAHAN:  I have nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Any redirect?

MR. MITCHELL:  No redirect, Your Honor.

EXAMINATION

BY THE COURT:

Q I was just looking at the transcript.  I mean, it's 

obvious that you told her that she was looking at LWOP.  The 

transcript verifies that.  But her LWOP comes from her prior 

drug offense of trafficking meth that she had pled to and 

then -- that was strike one?

A Correct.

Q And then she picked up all these other traffickings -- 

A Two separate incidents, so that would have been a 

second and a third.

Q Exactly.  And my point is that she got charged with 

trafficking, made bond and then got out and got charged with 

another trafficking and I assume they kept her there?

A They did, Your Honor.  I think she, also, had some kind 

of charge over in Georgia, drug charge over there, too.

Q So they would not have -- more than likely not have 

tried those together.  They're separate incidences and would 

have tried them separately and there goes her life without 
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parole.  And they reduced one of the traffickings to 

distribution of heroin?

A Yeah, yeah.

Q I mean, clearly, clearly her third and clearly a life 

without parole situation?

A And the PWID third is the same thing as far as the 

strike goes.  

Q Right.  But it doesn't matter if she pled to PWID or 

trafficking, it would have been a strike any way being her 

third offense and, also, the mandatory minimum 25.

A Right. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I just wanted to make sure I had all 

that right in my head.  

MS. MCMAHAN:  Just a few followup. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Are these true third offenses?  So we know she had the 

2017 trafficking.  Did she have any possessions or anything 

prior to that?

A No.  When they charged the third, they were assuming 

the second was going to be a conviction.  She had a first, 

then they charged when they arrested her on the first 

trafficking as a second, which it would have been. 

Q Uh-huh.

A And then when she got caught with another trafficking, 
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they charged her as a third.

Q She pled to three third offenses, so where was the 

second offense in all of that?

A I don't remember -- I mean, I --

THE COURT:  With her trafficking first offense, that 

very first, she was charged with another drug offense. 

MS. MCMAHAN:  Yes, but she had no prior conviction 

between that first trafficking offense until she pled to 

these, so there was no second in the middle is what I'm 

trying to say.  So there was a first trafficking --

THE COURT:  Well, I don't know what the --

THE WITNESS:  I don't have her rap sheet in front of 

me.  

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Is trafficking serious or most serious?

A Serious.

Q So if she didn't have another prior serious offense, 

then these would have really been seconds.  Because she pled 

to them all in the same day, so that's the conviction date.  

There was no second.  

THE COURT:  They're separate incidences.  

THE WITNESS:  They let her plead on the same day so 

they could count as one. 

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Yes, but there was no --

62



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

De Grant Gibbons - Recross by Ms. McMahan
27

A They were planning on splitting.

Q But there were no -- but I'm saying there was the first 

offense trafficking?

A Right.

Q Then there was nothing.  Then she got charged with 

stuff that she was never convicted of, so she never had a 

second offense conviction on those.  Then she pled to three 

thirds. 

A I don't have the rap sheet, but I'll be glad to look at 

it.  

(Pause.)

BY MS. MCMAHAN:

Q Did you just discover something?

A I just asked him and he said he found something.  

MR. MCMAHAN:  What did you find?

MR. MITCHELL:  This is the sentencing sheet from I 

believe a guilty plea from 2017 where she pled to drugs and 

the date of the offense -- I believe she pled to two drug 

charges on the same guilty plea, but they were two different 

incidences.  

THE WITNESS:  Two DUSs on the same day is still two 

DUSs.

MS. MCMAHAN:  Yes, but for the purposes of a 

conviction, the conviction matters on the day it's heard, 

not the day that the crime occurred.  So if the convictions 
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happened on the same day --

MR. MITCHELL:  I believe I have case law, Robinson V. 

State, which says that when charges are entered at the same 

proceeding, they are considered two separate offenses for 

the purposes of sentencing when they occurred separately and 

did not stem from continuous course of conduct.  I believe 

that applies to guilty pleas on two different -- to charges 

on one day, but to two different offenses. 

MS. MCMAHAN:  I have no further questions.  

THE COURT:  Thank you.  You may step down.  

THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  I'll be happy to hear from you.  

MS. MCMAHAN:  Judge, I think we just laid out our 

issues pretty appropriately on the record.  I would still 

contend that there's a possibility this actually should have 

been seconds instead of thirds.  Obviously, I haven't had a 

chance to look at the Robinson V. State case to determine 

that, but if there's some case law that says otherwise, that 

would be our main issue.  

THE COURT:  Anything from the State?

MR. MITCHELL:  Your Honor, the State would just submit 

that Ms. Davenport has not met her burden of establishing 

post-conviction relief.  Mr. Gibbons testified credibly that 

Ms. Davenport was advised, fully advised of the consequences 

of the plea.  She knew she was LWOP eligible.  In fact, she 
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admitted she was eligible.  She knew she was eligible prior 

to the plea. 

THE COURT:  It's in the transcript.

MR. MITCHELL:  Yes, Your Honor, the transcript reflects 

that as well.  She did testify that Mr. Gibbons advised her 

she was parole eligible, but that he told her it was 85 

percent.  So for all practical purposes, the exact same 

thing as being no parole is 85 percent.  So for those 

reasons, Your Honor, I would submit that this application 

should be denied.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.

I'll take it under advisement.  
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

COUNTY OF AIKEN )
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Second Judicial Circuit of the State of South Carolina, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate, and 

complete Transcript of Record of the proceedings had and the 

evidence introduced in the hearing of the captioned case, 
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County, South Carolina, on the 9th day of June, 2025.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel, 

nor interest to any party hereto.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA INDICTMENT FOR

COUNTY OF AIKEN TRAFFICKING METHAMPHETAMINE

§ 44-53-0375(C)(1)(a)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on October 1 , 2018, the Grand Jurors

of Aiken County present upon their oath:

That EVIN RAE DAVENPORT did in Aiken County, South Carolina, on or about

November 19, 2017, knowingly or intentionally having in actual or constructive

possession of at least 10 grams but less than 28 grams of Methamphetamine, a

controlled substance under provisions of Section §44-53-110, et. seq., Code of Laws of

South Carolina (1976), as amended, such possession not having been authorized by

law.

I

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided.

F
I

)
)
)
)

J
1

J

i
i

I

i

7/STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR
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DOCKET NO. 2018GS0202129
WITNESSES

The State of South CarolinaSC Dept, of Public Safety (SCHP)

County of Aiken
William K. Safford

Law Enforcement Case #: 17CH166970HP02

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
JWW

OCTOBER TERM 2018

.20.

EVIN RAE DAVENPORT

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

CDR #: 0450

Indictment for

VERDICT

TRAFFICKING METHAMPHETAMINE

§ 44-53-0375(C)(1)(a)

J. STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR

Foreperson of Grand Jury

Date: September 27, 2018

Foreperson of Petit Jury

Date:

THE STATE

vs.
CCX2P. & GS-

Deputy CkTk

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

201 7A021 020197?ij;d
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF AIKEN

§44-53-0375 (B)(1)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on Februray 13, 2017, the Grand

Jurors of Aiken County present upon their oath:

That EVIN RAE DAVENPORT did in Aiken County, South Carolina, on or about

April 10, 2016, knowingly or intentionally possess with intent to distribute a quantity of

Methamphetamine, a controlled substance under provisions of §44-53-110, et. seq.,

Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended, such possession not having been

authorized by law.

provided.

)
)
)
)

INDICTMENT FOR

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO
DISTRIBUTE METHAMPHETAMINE

I

i

bAgainst the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and /

J STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR
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DOCKET NO. 2017GS0200104

The State of South CarolinaSC Dept, of Public Safety (SCHP)

County of AikenV A Albert

Law Enforcement Case #: 16CH054118HP02

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
JWW

FEBRURAYTERM 2017

.20 /.7,_

EVIN RAE DAVENPORT

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

bill

CDR #: 3198

Indictment for

VERDICT

§44-53-0375 (B)(1)

J. STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR

WITNESSES

Foreperson ofPetit Jury

Date:

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO

DISTRIBUTE METHAMPHETAMINE

FILED.

2016A0210200578

THE STATE

vs.

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

4

Foreperson of Grand Jury ’

Date: February 9, 2017

c.ctfp. & G.S.

fijepvty Clerk
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INDICTMENT FORSTATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

TRAFFICKING HEROINCOUNTY OF AIKEN

§ 44-53-0370(e)(3)(a)2

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on June 7, 2021 , the Grand Jurors of

Aiken County present upon their oath:

That EVIN RAE DAVENPORT did in Aiken County, South Carolina, on or about

September 23, 2020, commit the offense of Trafficking Heroin by knowingly or

intentionally having in actual or constructive possession four (4) grams or more but less

than fourteen (14) grams of Heroin, a controlled substance under provisions of Section

§44-53-0110, et. seq., Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended, such

possession not having been authorized by law.

provided.

)
)
)
)

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

BILL WEEKS, SOLICITOR
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DOCKET NO. 2021GS0200757WITNESSES

Aiken County Sheriff’s Office The State of South Carolina

County of AikenCharles G. Benfield Jr.

Law Enforcement Case it: 20-035834

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
JWW

JUNE TERM 2021
20.

2020A021 0400363

PB

EVIN RAE DAVENPORT
ACTION OF GRAND JURY

CDR #: 0156

Indictment for

VERDICT

TRAFFICKING HEROIN

§ 44-53-0370(e)(3)(a)2

BILL WEEKS, SOLICITOR
Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

THE STATE
vs.

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

FlLED-OldTV? A

Foreperson of Grand Jury

Date: June 3, 2021

^3
CXXHUtOSL

4 r\
i DtputyCltrt
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA INDICTMENT FOR

TRAFFICKING METHAMPHETAMINECOUNTY OF AIKEN

§ 44-53-0375(C)(1)(c)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on June 7, 2021 , the Grand Jurors of

Aiken County present upon their oath:

That EVIN RAE DAVENPORT did in Aiken County, South Carolina, on or about

July 23, 2020, knowingly sell, manufacture, cultivate, deliver, purchase or bring into this

State, or did provide financial assistance or did otherwise aid, abet, attempt, or conspire

to sell, manufacture, cultivate, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or did

knowingly, actually, or constructively possess, or did knowingly attempt to become in

actual or constructive possession of at least 10 grams but less than 28 grams of

Methamphetamine, a controlled substance under provisions of Section §44-53-110, et.

seq., Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended, such possession not having

been authorized by law.

provided.

7

)
)
)
)

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

BILLWEEKSrSOLICITOR
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DOCKET NO. 2021GS02007S2WITNESSES
«

Aiken County Sheriffs Office The State of South Carolina

County of AikenCharles G. Benfield Jr.

Law Enforcement Case #; 20-035834

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONSJWW

JUNE TERM 2021
,20.

2020A021 0900090

EVIN RAE DAVENPORT
ACTION OF GRAND JURY

CDR #: 0452

Indictment for

VERDICT

TRAFFICKING METHAMPHETAMINE

§ 44-53-0375(C)(1)(c)

BILL WEEKS, SOLICITOR

J

• r

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

THE STATE

vs.

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

m rn 3

<7^

Foreperson of Grand Jury
Date-. June 3, 2021

Pa iq C feo.r r\
Q DeputyCI c rk
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IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

f
27

|X] PLEADS

NON-VIOLENT MOST SERIOUS[OUS

A'

Ordered

TOTAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

The charge is;

Th/tolea is:

COUNTY OF

STATE

SC Bar#

aunty Detention Center;

"Act HOL Lu dxC&cd “

and/nr

j

j

Recipient:

*Fine:

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %)

§ 14-1-21 1(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge)

§ 14-1-21 1(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge)

§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment)

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test)

Proviso (Public DefTProbation)
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding)

§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge)

§ 50-21-1 14 (BUI Breath Test Fee)

§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment)

3% to County (if paid in installments)

$100

$100

$12

$25

$500

$25

$150

$50

$40/ea
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payment

I

™nditiotn

RESTITUTION: Deferred Def. Waives Hearing

Total: $ plus 20% fee: $
Payment Terms:

SetbySCDPPPS
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vs;
Evin Rae Davenport
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CDLYesQ NoQ CMVYesQ NoQ HazmatYesQ NoQ

§17-25-45

3rd)

(defendant’s initials)

AKA:

Race:

DOB:

Address:

City,State,Zip:

DL#:

*i

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was

TO: Drugs / Trafficking in meth, or cocaine base - 10 g or more, but less than 28 g - 1st offense

in violation of § 44-53-0375(Q(l)(a)

E^yfOLENT

SENTENCE SHEET

I
I

!

!

/

AM} f &L /fyyWfi,

I

proh;

0;CONCURRENT or

days/hours Public Service Employment

Obtain GED

Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.

May serve W/E begining

Substance Abuse Counseling

Random Drug/Alcohol testing

Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly

pmts. of$ beginning

$ _

Other:

Sex: F Age:

SS#:
Belair Rd

Belvedere, SC 29841 -2689 ~
SID#:

CONVICTED OF or

£terhr»£$pBCt/ Deputy Clerk _J

Court Reporter:

SCCA/2 17 (04/2018) 1

paid to Public Defender Fund

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2018GS0202129

A/W#: 2017A0210201977

Date of Offense: 11/19/2017

S.C. Code § : 44-53-0375(C)(l)(a)

CDR Code #: 0450

Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,

Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk
during probation and shall be collected before

any other fees. > 7 * •

Presiding Judge

Judge Code:

Sentence Date:

tWLAtffac- Dep. 'T&

SAxTndicted, Lesser Included Offense,

/Without Negotiations or Recommendation, Negotiated Sentence^ Recommendation

Solicitor SC Bar# s Defendant 1 Sutorney ror Defendant

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the 'State Department of Corrections, Q-

for a determinate term of 4ays/moath(/ye^kuL wider the Youthful Offcndi
Jind/nr tn pay a fine nfS •provider that npnaifo cpnnpp nf — d&ys4»QUthsZyea££.

o£.$ - ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended >nth probation—

mnnthy^Tnro nnd rubjeet to CTolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon ctandard

prohafmn, which are incorporated by reference.

^CONCURRENT or CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
£/} The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by the SCDOC.

CAe&i-r 3o*7 Afys- iaai/ao
The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922, it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic

Violence ) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

PTUP

if the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0450

Mandatory GPS

(CSC w/minor 1st or CSC w/nw

|X| Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (,

Recommendation by the State.
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Court Reporter:
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§ 14-1-21 1(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge)
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§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment)
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The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922, it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic
Violence ) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.
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Q*A^lndicted, Lesser Included Offense,

[^Without Negotiations or Recommendation,
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days/hours Public Service Employment
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pmts. of$ beginning

$ paid to Public Defender Fund

Other: fA? 5,

CONVICTED OF or

Sex: F Age: _

SS#:
Belair Rd

Belvedere, SC 29841-2689
SID#:

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2017GS0200104

A/W#: 2016A0210200578

Date ofOffense: 4/10/2016

S.C. Code § : 44-53-0375 (B)(1)

CDR Code #: 3198

— Negotiated Sentence- Recommendation by the State.

Solicitor SC Bar# ./Defendant F ' ^Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#

TORE, the Defendant is commited to the 'State Department of Corrections, -0—County Detention Center,

for a ^terminate term of dayo/monthq^yearg^ 0 under the Youthful-Offender Act not to oxoood yoaro
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of $ plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation—for
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